

NSW Netball Association Limited Council Meeting



Date: Saturday 21 March 2020

Time: at the conclusion of the Extra Ordinary Council Meeting

Venue: Tennis NSW Function Room, Rod Laver Drive, Sydney Olympic

Park



NEW SOUTH WALES NETBALL ASSOCIATION LIMITED NOTICE OF THE MARCH 2020 GENERAL COUNCIL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that a Council Meeting of the New South Wales Netball Association Limited will be held on **Saturday 21 March 2020** at **Tennis NSW Function Room, Rod Laver Drive, Sydney Olympic Park**, commencing at the conclusion of the Extra Ordinary Council Meeting.

AGENDA

Contents

1.	APOLOGIES4
2.	MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING4
2.1	Confirmation of the Minutes of the previous Council Meeting held on Saturday 02 November 2019 4
2.2	Business Arising from Minutes of the previous Council Meeting held on Saturday 02 November 2019 4
3.	CORRESPONDENCE
3.1	Correspondence received
3.2	Business Arising from Correspondence27
4.	APPLICATIONS FOR MEMBERSHIP27
5.	NOTICES OF MOTION27
6.	REPORTS27
6.1	Board of Directors Report
6.1.1	November 2020 Meeting27
6.1.2	Board Appointments 202027
6.1.3	Policies Updated27
6.1.4	2020 Championship Venues
6.1.5	Vales



5.1.6	Honours List Recipients	28
6.2	Finance Report	28
6.2.1	Finance Report (for the Period Ending 31 January 2020)	28
6.3	CEO's Operational Report	33
6.3.1	Staffing Matters	33
6.3.2	Strategic Plan 2020-2022	34
6.4	Appeals Tribunal Report – 2020 Competitions	34
6.4.1	2020 DOOLEYS Metro League	34
7.	GENERAL BUSINESS	35
7.1	Presentation: MyNetball Update	35
7.2	Presentation: NetSetGO	35

Michael Anderson

Company Secretary



1. Apologies

2. Minutes of the previous Council Meeting

2.1 Confirmation of the Minutes of the previous Council Meeting held on Saturday 02 November 2019

A copy of the Minutes from the Council Meeting held 02 November 2019 is attached, pages 5 to 26.

There were no amendments received.

2.2 Business Arising from Minutes of the previous Council Meeting held on Saturday 02 November 2019 Nil.



NSW Netball Association Limited Minutes of Council Meeting



Date: Saturday 02 November 2019

Time: 9:00am (registrations open 8:15am)

Venue: Fitzroy & Macquarie Room, Campbelltown Catholic Club,

20-22 Camden Road Campbelltown



NEW SOUTH WALES NETBALL ASSOCIATION LIMITED MINUTES OF THE NOVEMBER 2019 GENERAL COUNCIL MEETING

Minutes

Contents

PRE	SENT		4
DEL	EGATES:		4
OBS	SERVERS:		ε
	E MEMBERS:		
NET	BALL NSW BOARD:		ε
NET	TBALL NSW STAFF:		6
1.	APOLOGIES		
2.	PREVIOUS MINUTES	•••••	7
3.	BUSINESS ARISING		c
3.			
4.	CORRESPONDENCE	•••••	8
5.	BUSINESS ARISING FROM CORRESPONDENCE	•••••	8
6.	APPLICATIONS FOR MEMBERSHIP		8
9.1	STRATEGIC PLANNING: CONSTITUTION		10
7	NOTICES OF MOTION		13
,.	NOTICES OF WICHOUT	•••••	13
8.	REPORTS	•••••	13
Ω 1	Board of Directors Report		13



8.2	Fina	nce Report	13
	2.1	Finance Report (for the Period Ending 31 August 2019)	
8.	2.2	Proposed 2020 Netball NSW Affiliation Fees	
8.	2.3	Proposed 2020 Netball NSW Full Season Membership Fees	15
8.	2.4	Proposed 2020 Netball NSW Summer Membership Fees	
8.	2.5	Proposed Competition Fees 2020	
8.3	CEO'	's Operational Report	16
8.4	Appe	eals Tribunal Report – 2019 Competitions	16
^	CE.	NERAL BUSINESS	10
9.	GEN	NEKAL BUSINESS	16
	_	:	4.0
9.1	Pres	entation: Strategic Planning 2020-2022	16
	Duas	entation: Athletes Pathway Framework	10
9.2	Pres	entation: Athletes Pathway Framework	10
9.3	Dros	entation: Competitions – Competition Reference Group Report	17
<i>9</i> .3	FIES	entation. Competitions – competition Reference Group Report	
9.4	Dres	entation: MyNetball Update	18
J.4			
9.5	Othe	er Business	21
	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		
9.5.1	L C	onference 2020	21
9.5.2	2 SS	SN Pre-Season Tournament	21
9.5.3	S S	outh Coast Blaze Premier League Team	21
9.5.4	. 20	020 Calendar	21
9.5.5	5 St	tate Masters	22



The meeting commenced @ 9:05am

The President declared the meeting open at 9.05am, made acknowledgement to Country and welcomed delegates.

The President thanked everyone for attending.

Table seating is a mix metro & regional as well as a Board or staff member at each table, an opportunity for delegates to get to know others and share ideas. The meeting is streaming live in an attempt to make the meeting accessible to those who are unable to travel. Participants online are not eligible to vote.

The President introduced the Board members.

The CEO introduced the Netball NSW staff in attendance.

Total voting power = 84.

There are 37 Associations in attendance. Quorum = 28.

Present

Delegates:

Judi Hansen Armidale Netball Association

Justine Kavanagh Armidale Netball Association

Nicole Oram Bankstown City Netball

Baulkham Hills Netball Association **Kylie Tzavaras** Monica O'Callaghan Baulkham Hills Netball Association Dianne McKinnon Blacktown City Netball Association Karen Szczerbanik Blacktown City Netball Association Blue Mountains Netball Association Denise Thrift Blue Mountains Netball Association Jenny Walker **Brunswick Byron Netball Association** Margaret Burke Camden & District Netball Association **Anthony Plater** Gail Lees Camden & District Netball Association Justin Rea Campbelltown Netball Association **Shirley Connolly** Campbelltown Netball Association Jayne Occhiuto City of Sydney Netball Association Suzanne Simpson City of Sydney Netball Association

Samantha Rumbel Dungog Netball Association

Karen Waud Eastwood Ryde Netball Association
Judy Watt Eastwood Ryde Netball Association
Carol Baiton OAM Fairfield City District Netball Assoc
Beverley Dew OAM Fairfield City District Netball Assoc

Joy DasanGosford Netball AssociationKath StyantGosford Netball AssociationKerrin ThomasGrafton Netball Association

Tracey Chalk Hawkesbury City Netball Association



Viv Bertenshaw Hawkesbury City Netball Association Hills District Netball Association Jennie Thompson Lyn Burgess Hills District Netball Association Illawarra District Netball Association Lyn Holmes Illawarra District Netball Association Dianne Elvy Anne Tait Inner West Netball Association Leanne Blackmore Inner West Netball Association Ted Beedles Kiama Netball Association Michelle Gregory Kiama Netball Association Loraine Unicomb Ku-ring-gai Netball Association Ku-ring-gai Netball Association **Kathy Staggs** Lismore Netball Association Jackie Small **Debbie Cross** Lismore Netball Association Jennie Webster OAM **Liverpool Netball Association**

Tania Kane

Eulalie Hayes

Lower Clarence Netball Association

Learnna Bennett

Cassandra Swalwell

Helen Dean

Colette Longley

Lower Clarence Netball Association

Maitland District Netball Association

Manly Warringah Netball Association

Manly Warringah Netball Association

Clare McCabe

Rebecca Keating

Linda Jones

Cheryl Hernando

Ellen Monaghan

Mens Netball Association

Nelson Bay Netball Association

Newcastle Netball Association

Newcastle Netball Association

Toni Field Northern Suburbs Netball Association Parramatta Auburn Netball Association Lyn Welfare Parramatta Auburn Netball Association Kim Higgins Joy Gillett OAM Penrith District Netball Association Barry Olsen Penrith District Netball Association Sue Xenos Port Stephens Netball Association Marie Kelly Randwick Netball Association Fran Reynolds Randwick Netball Association Wilma Klein Shoalhaven Netball Association Kathy Rembisz Shoalhaven Netball Association Helen Andrews St George Netball Association Robyn Ellis St George Netball Association

Karen Salter Sutherland Shire Netball Association
Prue Haberecht Sutherland Shire Netball Association

Janet Jamieson Tamworth Netball Association
Lyn O'Brien Tamworth Netball Association
Madeline Allen Westlakes Netball Association
Pamella Burt Westlakes Netball Association



Observers:

Shirley Way Sutherland Shire Netball Association Sue Woods Sutherland Shire Netball Association Shelly White Lower Clarence Netball Association Camden & District Netball Association Lyndall Schuhmeier Sue Guggenheimer Eastwood Ryde Netball Association Renee Ridgeway Callaghan District Netball Association Bronwyn Vosilla Callaghan District Netball Association Cherie Aoake Callaghan District Netball Association

Len Burgess Hills Netball Association

Michael Ridgeway Callaghan District Netball Association

Life Members:

Lynne Quinn OAM

Anne Doring OAM

Adele Saunders OAM

Wendy Archer AM

John Hahn

Rodney Watson OAM

Life member

Life member

Life member

Netball NSW Board:

President Louise Sullivan Carol Murphy Director Vincent De Luca OAM Director **Katherine Simmonds** Director Clare Tynan Director Andrew McMaster Director Diana Fraser Director **Ruth Havrlant** Director Miles Baron-Hay Director

Netball NSW Staff:

Carolyn Campbell Chief Executive Officer, Director

Mike Anderson Chief Operating Officer & General Manager GIANTS Netball

Lauren Woods General Manager Stakeholder Relations

Nikki Horton Head of Netball & General Manager NSW Swifts

Rebecca Shaw General Manager Marketing Communication & Events
Tim Underwood General Manager Commercial & Corporate Partnerships

Karen de Ridder Executive Support Officer

Todd Pengilly Association & Membership Coordinator

Melissa Achten Member Engagement Manager



Chris Hall Technical Officials Manager

Rosemary Hay Senior Human Resources Manager

Claire Dale Competitions Manager

Margaret Hamley State Pathways Manager

Shantel Cogno Policy & Support Manager

Stephen Bourke Facilities & Infrastructure Manager

Mardi Aplin Regional Development & Pathways Unit Manager

1. Apologies

Alex Peate Ballina Netball Association
Ashlea Robinson Charlestown Netball Association
Belinda Beresford Gosford Netball Association

Kaz Campbell Goulburn District Netball Association
Rosemary Miller Hastings Valley Netball Association
Cathy Glover Hastings Valley Netball Association
Doug MacColl Hills District Netball Association

Marilyn Melhuish OAM Life Member Maureen Boyle OAM Life Member

Kate Patterson Macleay Valley Netball Association
Zoe Barnes Lithgow City Netball Association
Tracey Parsons Lithgow City Netball Association
Estelle Lawler Liverpool Netball Association

Marie Cherote Northern Suburbs Netball Association
Glenys Paranihi Northern Suburbs Netball Association

Jane Dennis Orange Netball Association
Bec McKenzie Tamworth Netball Association

Robin Butler Ulladulla & Districts Netball Association

Melissa Ryan West Wyalong Netball Association

Danielle Hick Wollondilly Netball Association

Sandra Thorpe Woolgoolga District Netball Association
Lisa Coakley Woy Woy Peninsula Netball Association
Nichole Barnes Woy Woy Peninsula Netball Association
Chris Miles Wyong District Netball Association

MOVED Tamworth; **Seconded** Kiama: that the apologies for the Council meeting be accepted, with the additions noted above.

CARRIED

2. Previous Minutes

A copy of the Minutes from the Council Meeting held 30 March 2019 was tabled.

The following amendment to the minutes was noted by John Hahn, Life Member:



I have a Correction to the Minutes from the March 2019 AGM and Council Meeting
I have noticed that my name does not appear on the attendance list for both meetings.

I was in attendance for both meetings

Regards John Hahn Life Member

It was also noted the following delegates were in attendance but not noted in the minutes:

- Lyn Burgess OAM, Hills District Netball Association
- Kerrin Thomas, Grafton Netball Association
- Rebecca Keating, Nelson Bay Netball Association

MOVED Blacktown; **Seconded** Lynn Quinn OAM (Life Member): that the amendments to the minutes from the Council Meeting held 30 March 2019 as noted above be adopted.

CARRIED

MOVED Camden; **Seconded** Inner West: that the minutes from the Council Meeting held 30 March 2019 be adopted as tabled.

CARRIED

ACTION: Publish the minutes of Council meeting 30 March 2019, noting the correction to attendees list.

3. Business Arising

Nil.

4. Correspondence

There were no items of correspondence to be tabled for this meeting.

5. Business Arising from Correspondence

There was no business arising from correspondence to be tabled at the meeting.

6. Applications for Membership

One application for Membership was received: Callaghan Netball Association proposal for a new netball association in Newcastle's western corridor. The application was submitted along with the support of local councils & police

A copy of the proposal was tabled, pages 17-28 of the papers.

MOVED Vincent De Luca OAM (VDL) (Director); **Seconded** Sutherland: that 2 representatives of Callaghan address the Council.



CARRIED

Renee Ridgeway & Bronwyn Vosilla addressed the Council.

- Callaghan is Located in the western corridor of Newcastle, it has been identified as a targeted growth area.
- Callaghan is an Association that recognises and provides opportunities for indigenous & low socio economic community in a safe sporting community
- Aim is to address social pressures and issues of inclusiveness. A midweek competition is run including NSG, juniors, intermediate and seniors.
- Callaghan thanked NNSW for holding the Koori Games in Charlestown last week.

Maitland NA asked about the regions. Number of players per age group. How will the association value add to the area, with 2 courts. Callaghan response: Newcastle Council has indicated they will provide another 4 grass courts. Council will also commence construction of facilities in 2020 for completion in 2021 including a clubhouse. Growth in the area is predicted at 30% in 2021. Their focus is on children who are too scared to play in the mainstream, who just want to play netball.

Newcastle NA noted concern that it shouldn't be an Association, it could be done at club level. Other Associations are already addressing indigenous concerns. Callaghan response: Callaghan has been liaising with Newcastle Council and have a commitment from Council to provide 4 additional courts. They are targeting children who are currently not playing, they will not taking players from other associations in the region. There are a number of clubs working together.

Questions/Comments from Delegates

W Archer noted this is about social issues. Has there been discussion around running as a sub-group of Newcastle? Yes, there have been discussions. They are aware of the difference.

L Quinn commented she is disappointed to observe there hasn't been much conversation between local associations and Callaghan. Some of the surrounding Associations don't have enough children to fill their teams.

A Doring: Believes in 1 district 1 association. Concerns about division of Government funding, and recommends a sub-group.

Nelson Bay: Fletcher area currently has 2 courts and are providing funding for infrastructure and development.

Mens: Min target 120 members in the first year, 70% indigenous. Callaghan currently has 20 boys and males who coach and manage.

Sutherland: What is the distance from Newcastle or Maitland. Callaghan is 20-30 minutes, up to 1 ½ hours for children on a bus.

VDL: It is important to acknowledge all the issues this association is facing. He has been liaising with Newcastle NA to meet with Government. Newcastle Council to date has refused to provide funding for an indoor facility. Callaghan should consider becoming a subgroup.

The association be submitted as a subgroup

Dungog: commented that they have their own competitions midweek, then players have the opportunity to play for larger associations on weekends. In bigger competitions.



Newcastle: Supports the ideology behind the proposal. They are happy to support the midweek competition, but Newcastle does not agree that Callaghan should be an Association. It was acknowledged that Fletcher is identified as a new growth area in the next few years.

VDL shares Newcastle's concerns. There is not much money going around. There are separate grants for indigenous groups. He does not support the motion.

Port Stephens. They are located not far from the Callaghan area. They work well together with surrounding associations and supports the motion. Getting kids engaged with their own identity is critical.

Maitland: the Association doesn't support this. There haven't been conversations with Maitland.

J Hahn: supports the motion. Status of an Association assists with funding grants.

Del Saunders OAM LM: Newcastle has not known anything about this proposal for 3 years. This year an indigenous round was held.

Gosford: What are the consequences if the Association fails? All associations are separate entities.

Gosford: suggests the application for membership by Callaghan Association be put to vote under the NNSW Constitution Clause 9.4:

MOVED John Hahn (Life Member); **Seconded** Parramatta: that the Callaghan Netball Association application to become an affiliate of Netball NSW be put to vote.

CARRIED

Motion: For 52; Against 25

CARRIED

The President congratulated Callaghan.

The President requested to suspend standing orders to move to item 9.1 Strategic Planning Session.

9.1 Strategic Planning: Constitution

C Murphy (Director) presented an overview of proposed changes to the Election & Voting policy and the Constitution, following from the Association Forum held in September.

Election & Voting policy:

After the introduction of the online voting system, it was found there was some confusion on who received the notices to vote online. Also confusion on returning officer, external source, and the NNSW returning officer (Mike Anderson).

President and secretary of associations are the voting delegates, they will receive the online voting information. If you wish to change who the voting delegate is to be, advice to NNSW by 31 January is required.

Gosford commented that they didn't actually receive the voting notification. NNSW confirmed the external provider notified NNSW of rejected notifications. NNSW also sent separate memos to associations.

Amendments include removal of the need for scrutineers and grammatical changes.



Constitution:

Proposed changes are guided by Sport Australia governance principles.

Governance principles suggest there should be separation between Board and operational, and CEO should not be a Director. Also suggests Chair/President should be elected by the Board.

Outcomes from forum discussions, Council would elect 7 Directors, then the Board to elect President. The Board is in a better position than delegates to determine who has the necessary leadership qualities to chair the Board.

This proposal was strongly supported by delegates, believes the Board is in the best position to make that decision.

For clarification the Chair would come from one of the seven elected directors and voted by both elected and appointed directors.

It was noted some delegates preference is that council votes for the President and the Board elects a Chair. The President noted Netball Australia has a Chair only, previously had a President and a Chair.

It was suggested Associations should be provided with more detailed information on Board nominees in order to make more informed decisions when voting. The application form for Board nominees is to be updated prior to the election in 2020.

C Murphy sought an indication from attendees who would be willing to make the change to the President being elected by the Board. President is one of the 7 elected directors and elected by both elected and appointed directors.

Other proposed changes/amendments:

- Clarification of the definition of "attendees" and "observers"
- Inclusion of notice period for altering constitution
- Amendments to life member nomination parameters
- Notice period for postal voting
- Removal of transitional clauses (no longer required)
- Amendment to online voting announcement of results
- Creation an affiliate or association member category with no voting rights
- General formatting, grammar, punctuation corrections

The President acknowledged the work C Murphy and the Governance Committee has done.

Carol Murphy left the meeting @ 10:55am

Data Update:

L Woods provided an overview of data analysis projects

A summary of the results of the member engagement survey was presented.



The President acknowledged it is critical to understand our data in order to set strategic direction, identify needs, provide information to Associations, etc.

Strategic Planning process

The Draft strategic plan was distributed to attendees.

C Campbell provided a summary of the consultation process

- Online: survey of individual members over 2,400 responses
- Associations: workshops, Senior State Titles, at both venues
- Series of stakeholder interviews by the Consultants
- Workshop sessions of the Board, Executive and staff
- Follow up workshop session with the Board
- Associations Forum
- Further discussion at Board meetings

OUR VISION: Netball is NSW's leading sport of choice and opportunity

OUR PURPOSE: Lead and support our Netball community to grow and thrive

Values and behaviours

- WELCOMING: We are an inclusive community for everyone.
- ONE TEAM: We respect and value each other.
- BEST ALWAYS: We aspire to excellence.
- INTEGRITY: We play fair and take ownership of our actions.
- FUN: We love what we do.

Strategic pillars

- Governance and culture: overarching all pillars
- Community netball: grow the game
- Competitions and pathways: strive to shine
- Facilities and infrastructure: secure the future
- NSWE Swifts and GIANTS Netball: Full our potential
- Commercial and delivery: underpinning all pillars.

What next?

Associations are invited to provide feedback by 20 November, email to Karen de Ridder (kderidder@netballnsw.com).

Feedback will then be collated and discussed further at the Board meeting on 03 December.

We need to be willing to face challenges and embrace changes



Resumption of standing orders

7. Notices of Motion

There are no notices of motion to put forward to Council.

8. Reports

8.1 Board of Directors Report

The President presented a summary of 2019 achievements.

MOVED Grafton; Seconded Liverpool: that the Board of Directors report be adopted as tabled.

CARRIED

8.2 Finance Report

8.2.1 Finance Report (for the Period Ending 31 August 2019)

The finance report for the period ending 31 August 2019 was tabled.

The President introduced Andrew McMaster, Chair of A&R Committee and newly appointed Director. He has an Accounting background, partner of KPMG for 36 years, also Sydney Swans & Service NSW. He is also a social mixed netballer.

- Growth of professional sporting clubs comes from memberships, sponsorships & TV rights.
- Sport is not a business but it needs to be treated in a business-like manner. Business acumen is critical.
- NNSW is in good shape, but there are challenges. We have 2 facilities projects underway, KRA in west and RHOI in the east.
- There is and always will be a fundamental reliance on grassroots and pathways to grow the game.
- 2019 we are on track for a good result in 2019, break even.
- 2020 budget process is underway and will be ready to present to the Board in December.

M Anderson presented the finance reports August and September 2019.

Challenges:

- No TV Rights Revenue to Clubs Currently
- Leveraging Match Day / Asset share with SSN
- Increasing SSN costs
- Netball Australia contribution model
- Allocation of Federal Government Grant to Netball Australia

Opportunities:



- SSN TV Rights New Deal for 2022 and beyond
- Capitalising on the Premiership win by the Swifts
- Leveraging commercial opportunities through the association with the Sydney Swans and GWS Giants
- Maximizing all revenue streams from associated with elite teams
- Better use of technology and systems to support revenue growth
- Maximize usage and commercial outcomes of venues: Ken Rosewall Arena from 2020 and Royal Hall of Industries from 2021

Proposed 2020 Fees

- 4.5% increase across all membership categories (inc. summer membership)
- 4.5% increase in affiliation fee
- 2.1% increase in competition fee

Questions/Comments from Delegates

Del Saunders OAM: what is the comparison in netball numbers compared with population growth numbers. The data analysis project that's underway will provide some detail on this.

NNSW has had a lot of engagement with Netball Australia on how the NA grant funds will be expended.

Fairfield: how can we engage our communities to get them to play. LW advised there is a research project underway in the south west corridor of Sydney

West Lakes: Why is the expenditure for competitions and SSN lumped together? It doesn't provide a comparison of income and expenditure for Swifts and Giants. The information is available but is summarised in the report.

Tamworth: We are in a drought affected area, would like to see some information on growth after the drought breaks.

Manly: why are we putting up the fees by 4.5% when inflation rate is 1.5%? NNSW needs to ensure success of all levels of the game from grassroots and elite level. The Board is conscious of escalating costs and the challenges of balancing with revenue challenges. We are working towards the elite being self-funding.

Revenue and expenses are rising each year 9-10%.

Manly: How reliant are we that Giants and Swifts are in the top 4. Success helps revenue. However, it is noted there is no prize money for the SSN champion team. Swifts did not receive any prize money.

Shoalhaven: Forecast profit is \$52,000, is there any opportunity to provide subsidies for drought affected areas. In order to balance costs and revenue, we can't do everything. We are aware of the areas of hardship, for example taking Masters to Tamworth. On the table for discussion and in consultation with regional staff.



8.2.2 Proposed 2020 Netball NSW Affiliation Fees

2020 Netball NSW Affiliation Fee	2019 fee (excl GST)	% increase	Increase amount	2020 fee (excl GST)	2020 fee (Incl GST)
Membership up to 500 individuals	\$90.00	+ 4.5%	\$4.05	\$94.05	\$103.46
Membership 501-1000 individuals	\$180.00	+ 4.5%	\$8.10	\$188.10	\$206.91
Membership 1001-2000 individuals	\$240.00	+ 4.5%	\$10.80	\$250.80	\$275.88
Membership 2001 individuals and over	\$360.00	+ 4.5%	\$16.20	\$376.20	\$413.82

8.2.3 Proposed 2020 Netball NSW Full Season Membership Fees

Membership Category	2019 fee (excl GST)	% increase	Increase amount	2020 fee (excl GST)	2020 fee (incl GST)
Senior	\$78.42	+ 4.5%	\$3.53	\$81.95	\$90.14
Junior	\$59.57	+ 4.5%	\$2.68	\$62.25	\$68.48
NetSetGo	\$57.58	+ 4.5%	\$2.59	\$60.17	\$66.19
Non-Player	\$40.70	+ 4.5%	\$1.83	\$42.53	\$46.78
All Abilities	\$26.81	+ 4.5%	\$1.21	\$28.02	\$30.82

8.2.4 Proposed 2020 Netball NSW Summer Membership Fees

2020 Summer Membership Fees	2019 fee (excl GST)	% increase	Increase amount	2020 full fee (excl GST) Jan-Dec	30% discount on full fee	2020 summer fee (excl GST) Sept-Dec	2020 summer fee (incl GST) Sept-Dec
Senior	\$78.42	+ 4.5%	\$3.53	\$81.95	-\$24.58	\$57.36	\$63.10
Junior	\$59.57	+ 4.5%	\$2.68	\$62.25	-\$18.68	\$43.58	\$47.93

8.2.5 Proposed Competition Fees 2020

Competition	Per	2019 fee (excl GST)	% Increase	Increase amount	2020 fee (excl GST)	2020 fee (incl GST)
Senior State Titles (replaces State Championships)	Team	\$298.75	+ 2.1%	\$6.27	\$305.02	\$335.53



Junior State Titles (replaces State Age Championships)	Team	\$298.75	+ 2.1%	\$6.27	\$305.02	\$335.53
State Masters	Team	\$298.75	+ 2.1%	\$6.27	\$305.02	\$335.53
Regional League	Team	\$174.08	+ 2.1%	\$3.66	\$177.74	\$195.51
Night Inter-district	Player	\$81.54	+ 2.1%	\$1.71	\$83.25	\$91.58
Metro League	Player	\$108.94	+ 2.1%	\$2.29	\$111.23	\$122.35
State Cup	Player	\$86.48	+ 2.1%	\$1.82	\$88.30	\$97.13
Social Masters (excludes social function, which will be ticketed separately)	Player	\$78.95	+ 2.1%	\$1.66	\$80.61	\$88.67

MOVED Inner West; **Seconded** Bankstown: that the August & September 2019 financial reports and 2020 fees be adopted as tabled.

CARRIED

8.3 CEO's Operational Report

C Campbell provided an overview of 2019 achievements. 2020 will be an exciting year with NSW Swifts and GIANTS Netball home games moving to the Ken Rosewall Arena (KRA) at Sydney Olympic Park Tennis Centre.

Refurbishment at KRA is progressing, the photos presented were taken last week. It will seat a crowd of 10,000 and will be home for all NSW Swifts and GIANTS Netball SSN home games.

MOVED Gosford; **Seconded** Randwick: that the CEO's Report be adopted as tabled.

CARRIED

8.4 Appeals Tribunal Report – 2019 Competitions

MOVED Gosford; Seconded Inner West: that the Appeals Tribunal report be adopted as tabled.

CARRIED

9. General Business

9.1 Presentation: Strategic Planning 2020-2022

Refer to the minutes above.

9.2 Presentation: Athletes Pathway Framework

Margaret Hamley provided an update on the Pathways program and framework.



Pathways: Providing opportunities for athletes, coaches, umpires and managers with potential to dream, to grow and to strive.

Goals:

- Create a winning culture: Think long term, holistic, positive and athlete centred
- Acknowledge and support the critical role of coaches, support staff, umpires and officials
- Connect and align with partners to deliver a vision that is innovative and inclusive

Pathway Programs

- State Teams
- Talent Identification
- Regional Academies of Sport
- Emerging Talent
- Regional Emerging Talent
- Indigenous Emerging Talent
- Coach Education and Mentoring
- Umpire Education and Mentoring
- Parent Education

Love the game

- Athletes young and old play sport because they are having fun, and they quit when they are not.
- A major determinant of long term success and retention in sport is a love of the game

9.3 Presentation: Competitions – Competition Reference Group Report

Claire Dale provided an overview on the Competitions Reference Group.

NNSW set up a competitions reference group, following discussion and agreement at last year's Council meeting.

Summary of competition rule changes presented and copies made available at the end of the meeting.

Nelson Bay: 40% rule, could result in associations sending only 9 players to compete instead of 10. Change is based on research and academic evidence. Long term development of the sport wins over the short term win.

Sutherland: noted their concern about injury with the 40% rule, particularly in the top 7.

Liverpool: Why is there no 40% rule for 15 year olds, even though they are now playing in Senior State Titles.

Mens: commented that there should be more men involved in Sparkle & Shine, umpiring, coach.

Liverpool: commented that NetSetGo is all about dancing and doesn't appeal to boys as much as girls.



9.4 Presentation: MyNetball Update

The President introduced Spencer Retallack from Netball Australia. He has been with NA since January 2018.

Future: PlayNetball and MyNetball will be joined

Sutherland: MyNetball system hasn't been able to cope, How is the MyNetball app going to cope with that. NA is planning for a new website in 2021.

Shoalhaven: have had lots of issues with MyNetball. NA is working more collaboratively with Interact.

Sutherland: From the start of using Interact we have had numerous issues with the system, and we are still waiting for resolution.

Interact is rolling out solution to problems with dropping into another sport.

- Cross payments: Issue resolved, data and funds remediated. No new cases. Human error made during remediation which affected one transaction, currently being fixed.
- Incorrect Disbursements: Issue resolved, data remediated. No new cases.
- Reporting: Issue related to resolved, data remediated. No new cases.
- Competition module: Issues raised as support tickets are managed through the support workflow. There are no major issues with the competition module.
- Login Issues: InteractSport, Netball Australia and Netball NSW have been collaborating on a solution to problems experienced as a result of cross-tenancy with FFA in early 2019. This has been addressed across four key function areas:
 - o Participant Portal
 - Account Recovery
 - o Registration (MSU) Form
 - Administrator Functions
- There is a feature demonstration booked for November 14th where InteractSport will be demonstrating a number of features they have developed to improve account recovery and eliminate issues. This session will be recorded and can be shared with NSW associations if desired.

Manly: There were 3 motions put forward in March, regarding serious concerns around complexity of issues and unresolved issues. NNSW also wrote to NA. Registration should be a fluid easy process and shouldn't take the time it does for administrators to enter information into the system. There is 6 years of pain underpinning the questions you are being asked. Manly will be employing someone to deal with their 2020 registration process.

It was agreed in April to focus on fixing the problems rather than enhancing the product.

Tickets:

InteractSport have made a concerted effort to resolve (and close) open tickets since April. While there
are still a number of tickets that remain open more than two months after they were raised, tickets
are being attended to regularly within an hour of them being raised.

Images

• The 'team members report' returns player records from all teams specified in the search criteria for an organisation and can display images of players if specified.



- Ticket MND-2656 was created in May 2019 to address issues relating to the performance of this report

 it often failed due to the number of records returned in combination with the player images creating
 a file that placed too big a load on the system.
- The solution that was actioned in August 2019 was the creation of additional filters for the report to return fewer records at a time as well as the display of a warning message when the number of records returned exceeds 1000. Please note the player records are still available for download in excel format.

Service levels

- Netball Australia and InteractSport negotiated a service level agreement based on four priority levels of incidents.
- The majority of incidents have been at the lower end of the priority scale and have not significantly impacted the operability of the platform.
- The resolution time and expected percentage of issues resolved on time for the lower priority incidents with the majority of tickets resolved within 2 days of being raised.
- 75% of tickets are resolved within 2 days, which is a vast improvement.

Agreed Priorities for 2019

- The three areas were identified by the MyNetball Working Group as:
 - I. Account Recovery
 - II. Payment Gateway Reporting
 - III. Single Game Vouchers (not utilised in NSW)
- The MyNetball Working Group manage the priority and ranking of netball-related support issues within
 a fortnightly bug/issue triage session this feeds the sprint planning sessions undertaken by
 InteractSport. Issues that are not netball-specific (whole of platform issues) are managed by
 InteractSport.

Future State

- 1. Interact has supplied the sport with a Competition Management & Registration since 2012 :
 - No sport has got this right
 - Two major vendors have cornered the market
 - Significant investment in a codebase that has been customised to support individual sports
 - Larger sports have sustained this through increased investment
- 2. Agreement renewed at the end of 2018 for a further two years, concluding December 2020 with a view to go to market in 2019 seeking proposals from alternative vendors.
- 3. Significant consultation completed across the system to define core requirements and current pain points.

Member forum was held in early 2019 as well as member consultation throughout the country.



Consultation Phase

- 1. Spent March June working in a detailed discovery mode defining a digital solution that can service community netball more reliably, efficiently and affordably, and at the same time allowing data from the system to drive netball's broader strategy
- 2. The effort has focused on understanding:
 - a) the pain points and frustrations experienced at the 'coalface' of community netball operations
 - b) functional requirements of an alternative solution for community netball ('MyNetball 3.0') at an MVP level; and
 - c) the 'jobs' that will be performed by the various component technologies (ie beyond the core competition management system) that must be orchestrated as part of My Netball 3.0.
- 3. Netball has an ambition to re-platform. This will allow modern technology to streamline operations, standardise competition and registration procedures.
- 4. Key takeaways from our discovery:
 - a) There is an urgent mood in netball to move off the current platform
 - b) We have developed a very good view of core requirements
 - c) Change management and switching challenges make time of the essence
 - d) Must mobilise for detailed business case and planning
 - e) Competition Management & Registration is expensive and difficult to attack in isolation

Focus for 2020

NA has informed Interact Sport they will no longer be the vendor for MyNetball in 2021.

- Focus on support and maintenance
- No/very minimal custom development
- Positive working relationship
- Significant effort spent working with InteractSport on data migration

Netball Australia has identified a preferred vendor to work with from 2021 and beyond

- Piloting with Basketball Victoria (250k participation base)
- Modern technology infrastructure, ability to connect to broader ecosystem
- Expansive knowledge of grassroots community across multiple sports
- Validating product strategy and model with Member Organisations
- Core job is competition management and registration
- NA & Interact Sport will now work together for another 12 months to ensure the system meets the needs of users, and appropriate support is provided.
- PlayHQ has been identified as the new provider from 2021. They have worked with other sports and have a good understanding on how sport operates. Customer is a key focus.



How it impacts NSW

- 1. New platform coming at the end of 2020 in time for 2021 registrations. All States will be invited to join with NA to use the new product.
- 2. Detailed support and training program delivered
- 3. Significant change management plan executed
- 4. No significant change to customer sign-up for season 2020
- 5. Opportunity to collaborate with our recommended vendor and pilot the product in 2020 prior to full release

Gosford: Can NetSetGo be transferred into Interact for 2020. Question on notice.

Sutherland: Will we be able to suggest changes where the current system. Can we start with a small selection of memberships. NA will be ready Q3 or Q4. The intention is to work closely with each State to ensure a smooth rollout.

Inner west: Disbursements of payments errors was handled very poorly. Clubs were notified prior to Associations. A lot of Associations have given up raising tickets with Interact due to lengthy timeframes for resolution.

The President noted the Board are to consider options going forward. Will get further information on the proposed system and what other options are available.

Ku-ring-gai: It is not just registrations that will be affected, all other silos need to be in place. NA is working with SportAus and investigating solutions for all needs of members/associations.

Manly: Is there any additional cost in the next 12 months, what are the implications on Associations. What is the cost of change management. Work is underway on costs.

Interact sport has been a good partner to work with. The product doesn't meet the needs of netball but NA has had a good relationship with Interact.

9.5 Other Business

9.5.1 Conference 2020

Saturday 22 February 2020, Goulburn

9.5.2 SSN Pre-Season Tournament

27-29 March 2020, Ken Rosewall Arena, Sydney Olympic Park

9.5.3 South Coast Blaze Premier League Team

Shoalhaven: On behalf of Illawarra Shoalhaven we are pleased to announce we now have a Premier League team. South Coast Blaze are very proud to be part of it. Shoalhaven will be opening a new indoor centre shortly.

9.5.4 2020 Calendar

The 2020 calendar is available in the handout bags, after the meeting concludes.



9.5.5 State Masters

The 2020 venue and timing will be announced next week.

Tamworth: thanked all the teams who came to Masters this year. And would love to host it again.

The meeting closed @ 2:14pm





3. Correspondence

3.1 Correspondence received

There are no items of correspondence to be tabled for this meeting.

3.2 Business Arising from Correspondence

Nil.

4. Applications for Membership

There were no applications for Membership received.

5. Notices of Motion

There are no notices of motion to put forward to Council.

6. Reports

6.1 Board of Directors Report

6.1.1 November 2020 Meeting

Please be advised that the second Council Meeting of 2020 will be held on Saturday 07 November 2020, at Netball Central, 2 Olympic Boulevard, Sydney Olympic Park.

6.1.2 Board Appointments 2020

The Board made the following appointments in February 2020:

Historical and Archives Panel 2020

- Wendy Archer AM
- Lynette Burgess OAM
- Beverley Dew OAM
- Marie Kelly
- Rhonda Kimble OAM

6.1.3 Policies Updated

The following policies have been updated since the November 2019 Council meeting. Any amendments to policies are notified by memo and emailed to Association secretaries and full mailing list.

- Netball NSW Affiliation & Membership policy, updated 03 December 2019;
- Netball NSW Election & Voting policy, updated 03 December 2019;



Netball NSW Volunteer Recognition & Awards policy, updated 03 December 2019.

By referencing policies through the Netball NSW website you will always access the most recent version.

6.1.4 2020 Championship Venues

Venues for the Netball NSW 2020 season Senior State Titles and Junior State Titles:

Competition	Courts	Dates	2020 venue
Senior State Titles Div. 1 & 2	32	06, 07 & 08 June 2020	Liverpool City
Senior State Titles Div. 3 & 4	22	06, 07 & 08 June 2020	Bankstown City
Junior State Titles Div. 1 & 2	32	04, 05 & 06 July 2020	Penrith District
Junior State Titles Div. 3 & 4	32	04, 05 & 06 July 2020	Baulkham Hills Shire
Masters State Titles & Social Masters		17 & 18 October 2020	Wagga Wagga

6.1.5 Vales

Nil

6.1.6 Honours List Recipients

Congratulations to the following netballers, who were included in the 2020 Australia Day Honours list:

- Mrs Ronda May Alterator, Warriewood, OAM for service to netball (OAM)
- Ms Lisa Ann Beehag, Sylvania, OAM for service to netball (OAM)

Congratulations also goes to the following netballers, for being awarded an MBE (Members of the Order of the British Empire) in the 2020 UK New Years Honours List, which recognises the achievements and service of extraordinary people across the United Kingdom.

- Ms Joanne Harten (England Netball Player & GIANTS Netball Captain), for services to Netball.
- Ms Serena Guthrie (England Netball Captain and ex GIANTS Netball player), for services to Netball.

6.2 Finance Report

6.2.1 Finance Report (for the Period Ending 31 January 2020)

The finance report for the period ending 31 January 2020 follows, pages 29 to 32.



Finance Report

Finance Report – January 2020 For Council Meeting 21st March 2020 – Issued 28th February 2020

The Netball NSW (NNSW) year to date profit figure for the period ending 31 January 2020 is \$73,306 at EBITDA level (Earnings before interest taxation, depreciation & amortisation). Minimal P&L reforecasting has been completed at this early stage of the year and the full year forecast for 2020 is for a profit of \$126,978 at EBITDA level against a budgeted EBITDA profit figure of \$126,886.

Note as per the new accounting standard for leases AASB16 which the company adopted in late 2019, the impact of these standards on our EBITDA profit amount (our above the line profit result) is an improvement by circa \$64K whilst our overall below the line result is slightly worse off by \$7K. See attached table which will be further explained at the Council meeting (leases impacted were the Netball Central building lease and our office photocopier lease).

New Structure of the Consolidated Trading Statement

Following the business staffing restructure in late 2019 / early 2020, the structure of the Consolidated Trading Statement (Profit and Loss) has been updated accordingly to show the 4 pillars of the business:

- 1. Community and Pathways;
- 2. NSW Swifts SSN Operations;
- 3. GIANTS Netball SSN Operations; and
- 4. NNSW Business Operations (non-SSN) including Netball Central.

The current net equity position of Netball NSW is \$28.813M.

At 31 January 2020 the expected year end cash position is \$1.639M against a budgeted end of year position of \$1.633M.

For further information please refer to the Consolidated Trading Statement (Profit & Loss) and Balance Sheet.

Membership count as at 31st January 2020 was 32,088 members (count as at 31st January 2019 was 29,738). Capitation Revenue reforecast for 2020 is \$7.563M (includes NetSetGO and Affiliation).

Netball NSW Membership numbers for the 2019 year were 115,101 (capitation revenue was \$7.241M).

The February 2020 Finance Report will be distributed prior to the Council Meeting.

Mike Anderson NNSW EGM Finance & Strategy



Finance Report

Impact of New Accounting Standard AASB 16 Leases P&L Adjustment Summary

Prior to Adjustment / Implementation of new standard

Prior to Adjustment / implementation of new standard		
	Approved 3/12/2019 Budget	2020 Full Year Forecast as at
	2020 Full Year	Jan 2020
Profit / (Loss) * EBITDA	63,855	63,947
Interest & Other Revenue & Expenses (Net)	307,992	307,992
Profit / (Loss) after Other Revenue & Expenses	371,847	371,939
Depreciation Expenses (non-cash)	(1,878,416)	(1,878,416)
Grand Total Profit / (Loss)	(1,506,569)	(1,506,477)

Impact of New Standard	Approved 3/12/2019 Budget 2020 Full Year	2020 Full Year Forecast as at Jan 2020
Above the Line Adjustments (Included in EBITDA)		
Removal of Lease expenses from EBITDA Profit (Loss)	\$ 63,030	\$ 63,030
Below the Line Adjustments (After EBITDA)		
Addition of Interest expense (under standard)	\$ (30,176)	\$ (30,176)
Addition of Depreciation expense (under standard)	\$ (39,635)	\$ (39,635)
Net Impact on Grand Total Profit / (Loss)	\$ (6,781)	\$ (6,781)

After Adjustment / Implementation of new standard

	Approved 3/12/2019 Budget 2020 Full Year	2020 Full Year Forecast as at Jan 2020
Profit / (Loss) * EBITDA	126,885	126,978
Interest & Other Revenue & Expenses (Net)	277,816	277,816
Profit / (Loss) after Other Revenue & Expenses	404,701	404,794
Depreciation Expenses (non-cash)	(1,918,051)	(1,918,051)
Grand Total Profit / (Loss)	(1,513,350)	(1,513,257)

The NSW Netball Association Limited				Variance	Actual 2019
Consolidated Trading Statement (Profit & Loss) By Department	Actual Jan 2020	2020 Full Year Forecast as at	Approved	Current Forecast vs	
for the period ending 31/1/2020	Year to Date	Jan 2020	Budget 2020	Full Year Budget	Full Year
1. Community and Pathways					
Capitation & Affiliation Revenue (including NetSetGo Revenue) School & Community Revenue	607,882 512	7,563,151 365,684	7,562,994 365,684	157	7,241,203 381,731
Grants Revenue	8,839	155,982	155,982	-	161,419
Competitions Revenue	-	847,806	847,806	-	778,356
Pathways Revenue	-	116,640	116,640	-	94,622
Umpiring and Coaching Revenue Other Revenue (including State Dinner & Conferences)	2,027 59	135,197 118,500	135,197 126,000	- (7,500)	146,805 21,756
Sub-total Community and Pathways Revenue	619,320	9,302,960	9,310,303	(7,343)	8,825,892
Netball Australia Contribution Expense	(58,862)	(706,343)	(706,343)	(0)	(706,343)
NetSetGO Expenses School & Community Grants Expenses	- (8,845)	(517,798) (348,985)	(517,798) (348,985)	-	(503,045) (304,446)
Association Development Expenses	(23,112)	(241,605)	(246,605)	5,000	(148,458)
Regional Expenses	(36,009)	(656,448)	(656,448)	-	(583,268)
Competitions Expenses	- (40.000)	(744,911)	(757,456)	12,545	(614,659)
Pathways Expenses Umpiring and Coaching Expenses	(16,608) (1,268)	(347,000) (122,168)	(347,000) (122,168)	-	(310,006) (81,589)
Wages Plus Other Costs (including State Dinner & Conferences)	(97,946)	(2,179,786)	(2,179,786)	-	(1,956,081)
Sub-total Community and Pathways Expenses	(242,650)	(5,865,044)	(5,882,589)	17,545	(5,207,894)
Community and Pathways Profit / (Loss)	376,670	3,437,916	3,427,714	10,202	3,617,998
2. NSW Swifts - SSN Operations	-				
Sponsorship & Merchandise Revenue	125,271	1,676,012	1,676,012	-	1,558,965
Membership & Ticketing Revenue	7,382	944,965	904,885	40,080	739,613
SSN League Grants Revenue	51,875	422,500	415,000	7,500	415,000
VIK/Contra Revenue Functions & Events Revenue (incl. SSN Pre-season)	8,917 8,438	107,000 135,180	107,000 135,180	-	161,565 89,774
Swifts Academy Revenue	8,333	130,000	130,000	-	60,000
Other Revenue	-	-	-	-	44,170
Sub-total NSW Swifts - SSN Operations Revenue Player Expenses	210,216 (57,661)	3,415,657 (799,170)	3,368,077 (789,380)	47,580 (9,790)	3,069,087 (748,849)
Management, Coaches and Support Staff Related Expenses	(105,015)	(1,613,005)	(1,613,005)	(9,790)	(1,289,637)
Game Day, Membership & Marketing Expenses	(43,924)	(795,668)	(775,668)	(20,000)	(704,712)
Team Expenses	(52,536)	(348,639)	(348,639)	-	(350,787)
SSN League Entry Fee Sponsorship Expenses	(10,000) (4,608)	(80,000) (182,885)	(80,000) (182,885)	-	(80,000) (171,028)
SSN Functions & Events Expenses (incl. SSN Pre-season)	(420)	(181,560)	(181,560)	-	(90,711)
Swifts Academy Expenses	(10,582)	(215,360)	(215,360)	-	(117,236)
Sub-total NSW Swifts - SSN Operations Expenses	(284,746)	(4,216,287)	(4,186,497)	(29,790)	(3,552,960)
NSW Swifts - SSN Operations Profit / (Loss)	(74,530)	(800,630)	(818,420)	17,790	(483,873)
3. GIANTS Netball - SSN Operations					
Sponsorship & Merchandise Revenue Membership & Ticketing Revenue	112,295	1,510,336 880,982	1,510,336 880,982	-	1,191,816 723,537
SSN League Grants Revenue	51,875	422,500	415,000	- 7,500	415,000
VIK/Contra Revenue	26,583	319,000	319,000	-	368,148
Functions & Events Revenue (incl. SSN Pre-season)	-	133,660	133,660	-	56,385
Giants Academy Revenue Other Revenue	1,250	45,000	45,000		5,000
Sub-total GIANTS Netball - SSN Operations Revenue	192,003	3,311,478	3,303,978	7,500	2,759,886
Player Expenses	(49,991)	(752,670)	(742,880)	(9,790)	(750,895)
Management, Coaches and Support Staff Related Expenses Game Day, Membership & Marketing Expenses	(121,654) (50,478)	(1,477,373) (760,517)	(1,472,993) (760,517)	(4,380)	(1,288,344) (648,851)
Team Expenses	(26,041)	(502,613)	(507,951)	- 5,338	(477,518)
SSN League Entry Fee	(20,000)	(80,000)	(80,000)	-	(80,000)
Sponsorship Expenses	(5,514)	(161,985)	(161,985)	-	(123,075)
SSN Functions & Events Expenses (incl. SSN Pre-season) Giants Academy Expenses	(299) (55,833)	(189,500) (203,858)	(189,500) (202,858)	- (1,000)	(74,894) (57,110)
Sub-total GIANTS Netball -SSN Operations Expenses	(329,810)	(4,128,516)	(4,118,684)	(9,832)	(3,500,687)
GIANTS Netball - SSN Operations Profit / (Loss)	(137,807)	(817,038)	(814,706)	(2,332)	(740,802)
4. NNSW Business Operations (non-SSN) & Netball Central					
Commercial & Sponsorship Revenues (incl. VIK)	72,214	908,967	908,967	. l	686,077
Distributions from NNSW Foundation		100,000	100,000	-	25,000
Netball Central Revenue	79,644	1,266,124	1,266,124	-	1,129,191
Other Revenue (Excl. Interest Revenue) Sub-total NNSW Business Operations (non-SSN) & Netball Central Revenue	506 152,364	2,506 2,277,597	2,000 2,277,091	506 506	482 1,840,750
Commercial, Sponsorship and Staffing Expenses	9,204	(419,533)	(419,533)	-	(543,307)
Marketing, Events & Media Expenses	(36,447)	(183,080)	(183,080)	-	(121,104)
Netball Central Expenses	(89,381)	(993,502)	(993,502)	-	(1,012,688)
Administration Expenses (Excl. Interest and Depreciation Expenses) Sub-total NNSW Business Operations (non-SSN) & Netball Central Expenses	(126,768) (243,392)	(2,374,752) (3,970,867)	(2,348,679) (3,944,793)	(26,073) (26,073)	(2,333,289) (4,010,387)
NNSW Business Operations (non-SSN) & Netball Central Profit / (Loss)	(91,027)	(1,693,269)	(1,667,702)	, , ,	(2,169,638)
Consolidated Netball NSW					
*EBITDA Level Revenues	1,173,903	18,307,691	18,259,449	48,243	16,495,614
Expenses	(1,100,597)	(18,180,714)	(18,132,563)	(48,150)	(16,271,928)
Profit / (Loss) * EBITDA	73,306	126,978	126,886	92	223,686
Interest 9 Other Devenue 9 Europe (Net)	/4.007)	(04.704)	/04 70 ()		(00.044)
Interest & Other Revenue & Expenses (Net) Extraordinary Item - KRA Development Revenue (non-cash)	(1,397)	(31,734) 309,550	(31,734) 309,550	-	(36,644)
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,			-		
			101 = 01	00	407.044
Profit / (Loss) after Other Revenue & Expenses	71,909	404,793	404,701	92	187,041
	·	·	·	92	•
Profit / (Loss) after Other Revenue & Expenses Depreciation Expenses (non-cash) Grand Total Profit / (Loss)	71,909 (155,068) (83,159)	(1,918,051) (1,513,257)	(1,918,051) (1,513,350)	92 - 92	(1,901,502) (1,714,461)

^{*} Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation & Amortisation (EBITDA) and Extraordinary Items

THE NEW SOUTH WALES NETBALL ASSOCIATION LIMITED BALANCE SHEET As at 31 Jan 2020

<u>ASSETS</u>	Jan 31, 2020	Dec 31, 2019	\$ Change
<u>Current Assets</u>			
Cash Assets Accounts Receivable Other Current Assets Prepayments	1,666,173 810,962 155,802 57,048 2,689,985	1,872,611 897,977 158,170 188,321 3,117,079	(206,438) (87,015) (2,368) (131,272) (427,094)
Non-Current Assets			
Fixed assets (at WDV) Right of Use Asset Netball Central Sinking Fund Total assets	28,621,053 765,886 225,000 32,301,924	28,772,970 765,886 225,000 32,880,934	(151,917) 0 0 (579,011)
<u>LIABILITIES</u>			
Current Liabilities			
Accounts Payable Other Creditors Income in advance Bank Loans (cars, gym & café fitout) Lease Liability GST payable/(receivable) PAYG/FBT/Payroll Tax Payable Superannuation contributions payable Provision for employee entitlements	340,800 927,141 672,824 127,025 62,534 46,501 41 48,463 289,905 2,515,234	386,811 654,877 1,193,222 155,748 62,534 28,973 33,861 173,519 389,517 3,079,061	(46,011) 272,265 (520,398) (28,723) 0 17,529 (33,821) (125,056) (99,612) (563,827)
Non-Current Liabilities			
Loans and Borrowings Lease Liability Provision for employee entitlements Security Deposit Bond	138,669 704,688 107,797 22,208 973,362	122,925 711,786 48,466 22,208 905,386	15,744 (7,099) 59,331 0 67,976
Total liabilities	3,488,595	3,984,447	(495,851)
NET ASSETS	28,813,329	28,896,488	(83,159)
EQUITY			
Retained earnings Current year profit/(loss)	28,896,488 (83,159)	30,610,951 (1,714,463)	(1,714,463) 1,631,304
TOTAL EQUITY	28,813,329	28,896,488	(83,159)



6.3 CEO's Operational Report

In reflection of 2019 we are proud of the achievements by all involved in Netball NSW. The following captures just a few of these achievements.

- Redevelopment of the Ken Rosewall Arena, which will become the NSW Swifts and GIANTS Netball home venue from 2020
- Launch of the QBE Swifts Academy and GIANTS Netball Academy for our emerging talent
- Record grassroots registrations in 2019, with 115,101 members
- NSW Swifts won the 2019 SSN championship
- NSW State teams silver medalists for both the 17U and 19U National Netball Championships
- Celebrated 90 years of netball in New South Wales in 2019

Planning for 2020 is well underway and I encourage all Associations to head to https://nsw.netball.com.au/ for up to date information.

I would like to thank all those involved in providing input into our 2020-2022 Strategic Plan, which has now been finalised. Copies of the strategic plan will be available following conclusion of the Council meeting.

The Organisation's restructure is now completed, an updated list of key contacts will be available following conclusion of the Council meeting.

With a massive community, two elite teams, numerous High Performance pathways and two world-leading venues to call home, there has never been a better time to match our efforts with equal promotion.

Finally, as ever, I would like to thank the Netball NSW Board of Directors and staff for their tireless contribution. Consistently going above and beyond for netball in this state, it is my pleasure to work alongside them, and I look forward to what 2020 will bring.

Carolyn Campbell

Chief Executive Officer

6.3.1 Staffing Matters

Resignations	Ellen Kingston	Marketing & Fan Activations Manager	08 November 2019
	Sam White	Participation Coordinator Community Engagement	31 January 2020
	Alison Edmonds	HR Manager	31 January 2020
	Elana Withnall	Social & Digital Coordinator	31 January 2020
	Madison Cole	Regional Development Officer, West Central West	14 February 2020



Redundancy	Rebecca Shaw	General Manager, Marketing Communication & Events	11 November 2019
Appointments	Madeline Ibrahim	Swifts Video and Digital Coordinator	11 November 2019
	Olivia Rebelo	Corporate Partnerships Manager (maternity leave contract)	17 February 2020
	Alex Emerson	Regional Development Officer, West Central West	17 February 2020
	Eddie Semaan	Member Engagement Coordinator	17 February 2020
	Kaitlyn Sapienza	Metro Development Officer	17 February 2020
	Keana Raymond	Participation Coordinator Community Engagement	24 February 2020
	Darren Simpson	Executive General Manager, Community & Pathways	02 March 2020
	Sarah Gordon	Participation Coordinator Products (NetSetGo)	10 March 2020
	Steven Neal	Executive General Manager, Commercial & Marketing	11 March 2020
Internal Appointments	Brittany Vearing	Corporate Partnerships Manager (previously Partnerships Coordinator) (replaces Ali Coleman)	21 October 2019
	Melanie Chapman	Participation Manager (previously Participation Coordinator NSG)	06 January 2020
	Nikki Horton	Executive General Manager NSW Swifts (previously Head of Netball & General Manager NSW Swifts)	06 January 2020
	Tim Underwood	Executive General Manager GIANTS Netball (previously General Manager Commercial & Corporate Partnerships)	13 January 2020

6.3.2 Strategic Plan 2020-2022

The Strategic Plan for 2020-2022 was finalised in late 2019, after extensive community consultation. Copies of the strategic plan will be available following conclusion of the Council meeting.

6.4 Appeals Tribunal Report – 2020 Competitions

6.4.1 2020 DOOLEYS Metro League

No appeals were received for the 2020 DOOLEYS Metro League Competition.



Claire Dale

Competitions Manager

7. General Business

7.1 Presentation: MyNetball Update

For presentation at the meeting.

7.2 Presentation: NetSetGO

For presentation at the meeting.